
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Marc D. Tall, Mayor 
Peggy O’Connell, Mayor Pro Tem 
Ralph B. Blasier, Council Member 
Tyler D. DuBord, Council Member  
Karen S. Moore, Council Member 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
VIRTUAL MEETING AGENDA 

April 16, 2020 
 

Patrick S. Jordan, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

John Bergman, City Attorney 

 
City Council will hold this meeting virtually using WebEx. Detailed procedures by which the public can participate in the 
meeting electronically, including a telephone number and internet address is posted on our website home page “Virtual 

Meetings” (Escanaba.org). 
The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate.  All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Virtual WebEx Regular Meeting 
Thursday, April 16, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES –  Regular Meeting – April 02, 2020 
      Special Council Meeting Budget – April 6, 2020 
      Special Council Meeting Budget – April 7, 2020  
 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
1. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption of the Residential Planned-Unit Development Re-Zoning – Planning 

& Zoning. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting the City Council to consider approval and adoption of the Residential 
Planned-Unit Development Re-Zoning for the property located at 500 North 26th Street be rezoned from F-Light 
Manufacturing to C2 – Residential Planned Unit Development. 
 

2. Close-Out Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) – Northern Machining & Repair #2. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking Council approval to consider this the Public Hearing regarding the closeout of 
the #2 CDBG loan for Northern Machining & Repair. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – 
 
1. Approval - Adoption of the Bay de Noc PILOT Ordinance No. 1223 - An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 26 – Taxation 

of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Escanaba. 
Explanation:  Administration is requesting the City Council to consider approval and adoption of the Bay de Noc 
PILOT Ordinance No. 1223, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 26 – Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Escanaba. 
 

2. Approval - Municipal Services Agreement for the Bay de Noc Apartments Project – Woda Cooper Companies. 
Explanation: Woda Cooper Companies is requesting City Council approval of a Municipal Services Agreement for the 
property located at 500 North 26th Street.   
 

3. Approval – Traffic Control Order #1005 – Public Safety. 



Agenda – April 2, 2020 

Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval of Traffic Control Order #1005 to have “No Overnight 
Parking” signs be installed in the City Hall Parking Lot – 410 Ludington Street, No overnight parking shall 
mean between 10:00 pm and 6:00 am.. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Approval – Residential Planned-Unit Development – Final Plan – Planning & Zoning.
Explanation: Administration is recommending Council approval of the Final Development Plan for a 4-story, 70-unit
apartment building to be constructed at 500 North 26th Street.

2. Approval – Intent to Apply Form for DWRF Loan – Water Department.
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council’s approval to submit the attached “Intent to Apply Form”,
requesting a DWRF (Drinking Water State Revolving Fun), loan in the amount of $20,000,000 for the purpose of
replacing aging infrastructure within the existing water distribution system.

3. Approval – RRC Recertification Action Plan – Planning & Zoning.
Explanation: Administration is requesting approval of the Redevelopment Ready Community (RRC) Action Plan
which outlines the timetable for completing required actions to achieve recertification.

4. Approval- Investment Report and Depository Approval – Controller.
Explanation: Bob Valentine of First Bank will present the annual investment report. Administration is seeking City
Council approval to the list of depositories.

5. Approval- BS&A Software – Planning and Zoning.
Explanation: Administration is requesting approval to purchase Community Development software from BS&A in
the amount of $35,500. The first payment of $10,250 will be due upon execution of the agreement with the
remaining balance due in the next fiscal year.

6. Setting of Public Hearing – FY2020-2021 Budget – May 7, 2020.
Explanation: Administration is requesting Council set May 7, 2019, as the fourth Public Hearing on the proposed
2020-2021 City Fiscal Year Budget.

7. Approval- Bonding Ordinance for WWTP SRF Project – Wastewater.
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council’s approval of an Ordinance 1226 authorizing the issuance of
the Wastewater System Revenue Bonds for the WWTP project in an amount not to exceed $14,000,000.

8. Approval – Award Construction Work for Wastewater Treatment Plant SRF Project – Wastewater.
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council's approval to award the contract to Staab Construction
Corporation of Marshfield, WI in the amount of $13,352,000. The contract award should be made contingent upon
receipt of the project financing from the State of Michigan under the State Revolving Loan program, successful
negotiation of a deductive change order #1 with Staab, and sufficient City reserves to fund the shortfall.

9. Approval – Construction Contract Resolution for Wastewater Treatment Plant SRF Project – Wastewater.
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council’s approval of Resolution 20-09 to accept the construction
contract to be awarded to Staab Construction Corporation of Marshfield, WI.

APPOINTMENTS  
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
ANNOUNCEMENTS - 
ADJOURNMENT  



Agenda – April 2, 2020 
 

Respectfully Submitted  
 
 

 
Patrick S. Jordan  
City Manager  

 



 

OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Virtual WebEx Regular Council Meeting 

Thursday, April 2, 2020 
 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Marc D. Tall at 7:02 p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor Marc D. Tall, Council Members, Ralph B. Blasier, Tyler D. DuBord, 

Karen S. Moore, and Peggy O’Connell  
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Deputy City Clerk 

Tammy Weissert, Department Heads, media, and members of the 
public. 

 
Blasier moved, O’Connell seconded, to approve Regular Meeting minutes from 
March 5, 2020, as submitted. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Blasier, O’Connell, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Blasier moved, Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Blasier, Moore, DuBord, O’Connell, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION  
 

O’Connell will abstain from Agenda Item #4 (Classic Car and Bike Night Events) due 
to her sponsoring the event. 
 

 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
April 2, 2020 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
PH-1 Public Hearing – Citizen Participation – 2020 / 2021 Fiscal Year Budget 
Preparation. 

 
A public hearing was conducted to facilitate input from citizens for the City’s next 
fiscal year budget. This was the third of five (5) scheduled public hearings. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Tall asked for public comment. 
 
Hearing to public comment, Mayor Tall then closed the public hearing. 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – Traffic Control Order #1004 & #1005 – Public Safety. 
 

Administration sought City Council approval of Traffic Control Order #1004 to have 
“No Parking” signs be installed on the East side of Sheridan Road from 15th Avenue 
North to Public Works (1715 Sheridan Rd) and Traffic Control Order #1005 to have 
“No Overnight Parking” signs be installed in the City Hall Parking Lot – 410 
Ludington Street, No overnight parking shall mean between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 
a.m.. 
 
NB-1 O’Connell moved, Blasier seconded, to approve of Traffic Control Order #1004 
to have “No Parking” signs be installed on the East side of Sheridan Road from 15th 
Avenue North to Public Works (1715 Sheridan Rd) and to postpone Traffic Control 
Order #1005 to have “No Overnight Parking” signs be installed in the City Hall 
Parking Lot – 410 Ludington Street, until City Council can get clarification from the 
Traffic Safety Advisory Committee on whether Traffic Control Order #1005 can be 
seasonal.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: O’Connell, Blasier, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-2 Approval – Resolution for Street Add Certification - Engineering. 
 

Administration recommended Council approval to add South 32nd Street from 3rd 
Avenue South to 4th Avenue South to its street system. 



City Council Minutes  
April 2, 2020 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

 
“NB-2 Resolved by Council Member Blasier, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 

RESOLUTION 20-08 
FOR ADD 

STREET CERTIFICATION 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to furnish certain information to the State of Michigan to 
place this street within the City Street System for the purpose of obtaining funds 
under Act 51, P.A. 1951 as amended. 
 
NOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the center line of South 32nd Street between 3rd Avenue South and 4th 

Avenue South described as follows: 
 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH ¼ CORNER, SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 39 
NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, CITY OF ESCANABA, DELTA COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 
THENCE NORTH 0°-30’-00” EAST A DISTANCE OF 1,286.00 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 3RD AVENUE SOUTH, THENCE NORTH 
89°-54’-50” WEST ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 3RD AVENUE SOUTH 
A DISTANCE OF 348.54 FEET TO THE PONT OF BEGINNING, A POINT ON THE 
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 3RD AVENUE SOUTH AND THE CENTERLINE OF 
SOUTH 32ND STREET. THENCE SOUTH 00°-26’-30” WEST A DISTANCE OF 
118.94 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 29°-57’-40” WEST A DISTANCE OF 483.27 FEET 
TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 4TH AVENUE SOUTH 
EXTENDED AND THE CENTERLINE OF SOUTH 32ND STREET, THE POINT OF 
ENDING.      
 
2. That said street is located within the City right-of-way and is under the control of 

the City of Escanaba. 
 
3. That said street is a public street and is for public street purposes. 
 
4. That said street is accepted into the municipal street system and is open to the 

public for public use on or before December 31, 2019. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Blasier, Moore, DuBord, O’Connell, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
  

NB-3 Approval – Digester #4 Repairs - Wastewater. 
 



City Council Minutes  
April 2, 2020 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

Administration requested City Council’s approval to hire and retain the services of 
Terrazzo Creations and Renewal (TCR) of Norway Michigan, to conduct the repairs 
on digester #4 as specified in the attached quote, in an amount not to exceed 
$19,700. 
NB-3 Blasier moved, O’Connell seconded, to approve to hire and retain the services 
of Terrazzo Creations and Renewal (TCR) of Norway Michigan, to conduct the 
repairs on digester #4 as specified in the attached quote, in an amount not to exceed 
$21,000. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Blasier, O’Connell, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-4 Approval - Street Closure Requests for 100 Block of South 13th Street to 1st 
Avenue South for Various Fundraising Events. 
 

Mr. Curt Spaulding, owner of Cat-Man-Do’s, 1223 Ludington Street requested the 
City Council approve the closure of the 100 block of South 13th Street from 
Ludington Street to 1st Avenue South for Classic Car and Bike Nights (June 10th 
and 11th, July 8th and 9th, August 12th and 13th, and September 9th and 10th), the 
Fun Run Parade May 29th, and other Fundraisers (Car Show July 18th and 
Wheeling Sportsmen August 22nd). 
 
NB-4 Blasier moved, Moore seconded, to approve the closure of the 100 block of 
South 13th Street for all events listed. Closure of Ludington Street from South 12th 
and South 13th Street for Classic Car and Bike Nights, June 10th (rain date - June 
11th), July 8th (rain date - July 9th), August 12th (rain date - August 13th), and 
September 9th (rain date - September 10th), closure of the 100 block of South 13th 
Street for the Fun Run Parade May 29th, and other Fundraisers (Car Show July 18th 
and Wheeling Sportsmen August 22nd).  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Blasier, Moore, DuBord, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
Abstain: O’Connell 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  



City Council Minutes  
April 2, 2020 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 

 
 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

William Gasman – commended the City for the Virtual Meeting and also including 
the residents and citizens to take part.  
  
Jim Berthiaume – thanked the City for putting the Virtual Meeting together and thinks 
it was a success. 
 
Patty Woerpel – stated the City did a very nice job on the Virtual Meeting, needs a 
little work here and there, but was glad she could listen. 

 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 Animal Shelter saved 81 animals in March; 

 Asked people to really take COVID-19 seriously; 

 Asked to close City parks, but want to keep them open for walking and biking, 
can’t have groups gathering, stay home and stay safe. 

 

PROCLAMATION  

Mayor Tall proclaimed the start of “Evening in Escanaba” and also proclaimed April 

24, 2020, as “Arbor Day” 

Hearing no further public comment, O’Connell moved, the Council adjourned at 7:45 
p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 

 
Tammy Weissert, CMC   Approved: _____________________ 
Deputy City Clerk     Marc D. Tall, Mayor 



 

1 

 

City of Escanaba 
Virtual WebEx Special Council Meeting 

Monday, April 6, 2020 
 

Pursuant to a meeting notice posted December 18, 2020, the Council of the City of 
Escanaba convened in special session Virtual WebEx at 9:09 a.m., to begin the review 
and discussion of the proposed 2020/21 City Budget. 
 
Present:  Mayor Marc D. Tall, Council Members, Ralph B. Blasier, Tyler D. DuBord, 

Karen S. Moore, and Peggy O’Connell  
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Controller Melissa Becotte, City Clerk 

Phil DeMay, Deputy City Clerk Tammy Weissert, Department Heads, 
media, and members of the public 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
City Manager Patrick Jordan and City Controller Melissa Becotte presented Council the 
following Budget information: 
 

CITY MANAGER’S FINAL BUDGET OVERVIEW – FY 2020-21 

 

Pursuant to the Escanaba City Charter and relevant state laws, I hereby submit for City Council and community 

review the final FY 2020-21 Budget. A copy of this document has been placed on file with the City Clerk and at 

the Escanaba Public Library, where the public may review it during normal hours of operation. An electronic 

version is also available on the City’s website, www.escanaba.org, and on the City of Escanaba’s Facebook page. 

This document serves as a daily guide for City Administration in receiving and allocating resources in the most 

effective way for the good of the community. 

 

This budget, with over $30 million in expenditures, reflects our commitment in providing core services to our 

community and was developed using the best available information and most current revenue projections. 

http://www.escanaba.org/


 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

2 

City Millage Rate/Tax Rate and Tax Roll. The final budget is based on a property tax rate of 17 mills, which 

will not require any tax increase in the upcoming fiscal year. 

 

For homeowners in the City, 41.05% of the total property tax bill is kept by the City of Escanaba to pay for all 

General Fund services provided. The remaining 58.95% of a homeowner’s tax bill is remitted to Delta County, 

the State of Michigan, the Escanaba School District, the Delta Schoolcraft Intermediate School District (DSISD), 

the Delta County Sheriff Department, 911 Operations, the Delta Area Transit Authority (DATA), Community 

Action Agency (CAA) and Bay de Noc Community College. 
 

WHERE YOUR TAX DOLLAR GOES… 

Homestead Exemption 

 

Non-Homestead Exemption 
 

 

General Fund. The General Fund budget, which supports many of the day-to-day activities of the City, is 

$8,665,307 (including transfers in from other funds), representing a decrease of .03% from the previous year’s 

budget. At the end of FY 2018-19, the General Fund balance was $4,511,005, with a long-term debt obligation 

of $625,000. At the end of FY 2019-20, projections show an estimated fund balance of $4,586,083, with a long-

term debt obligation of $500,000. In the FY 2020-21 Budget, a projected fund balance of $4,292,346, with a long-

term debt obligation of $375,000, is being proposed. The budget includes an electric utility transfer of $765,790. 

Similar to most public utilities, this transfer, likened to property-like taxes or payments in lieu of taxes and the 

like have been made on an annual basis in Escanaba since 1956 so as to provide a direct benefit to the community 

including those properties that are exempt from paying property taxes. Using the latest available American Public 

Power Association data (2014) public power utilities contributed 5.6% of electric operating revenue back to the 

communities they serve. 

      
C

it
y 

o
f 

Es
ca

n
ab

a 

41
.0

5%
 

  
D

el
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

18
.1

5%
 

 

St
at

e 
o

f 
M

ic
h

ig
an

 

14
.4

9%
 

Es
ca

n
ab

a 
P

u
b

lic
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 

9
.6

6
%

 

 

B
ay

 C
o

lle
ge

   
7

.9
9

%
 

D
SI

SD
   

5
.7

6
%

 

D
A

T
A

   
1

.4
5

%
 

C
A

A
   

1
.4

5
%

 

     

Es
ca

n
ab

a 
P

u
b

lic
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 

3
7

.0
3

%
 

    
C

it
y 

o
f 

Es
ca

n
ab

a 

28
.6

2%
 

 
D

el
ta

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

12
.6

5%
 

St
at

e 
o

f 
M

ic
h

ig
an

 

10
.1

0%
 

B
ay

 C
o

lle
ge

   
5

.5
7

%
 

D
SI

SD
   

4
.0

1
%

 

D
A

T
A

   
1

.0
1

%
 

C
A

A
   

1
.0

1
%

 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

3 

 
 

As discussed with the City Council over the last several years, I believe that local units of government are 

struggling because the State’s system for funding municipalities is broken and does not track with the economy. 

In Michigan, cities have very few sources of revenue—and those sources are shrinking. In recent years these 

sources have failed to keep up with the current level of services, much less rising costs. Also, Michigan law 

contains structural provisions that limit cities’ ability to collect taxes on existing properties. 

 

Only once since FY 1998 have lawmakers acted to fully fund Constitutional revenue sharing payments (in FY 

2001). What’s more, the cumulative amount of cuts to Constitutional revenue sharing for municipalities from FY 

1998 to FY 2017 is estimated to be over $5.5 billion. When counties are included, the cumulative cut to local 

government revenue sharing since 1998 exceeds $7.5 billion. Since 2002, Michigan has led the nation in cuts to 

municipalities. The Census of Governments, published every five years by the U.S. Census Bureau, reported that 

from 2002 to 2012, municipal revenue from state sources increased in 45 states and the average increase was 48.1 

percent. In Michigan, municipal revenue from state sources declined 56.9 percent from 2002 to 2012. During this 

same period, total revenue for the State of Michigan increased by 29.3 percent (1)
. 

 

 

(1)     Great Lakes Economic Consulting – April 2016 – "Michigan’s Great Disinvestment” 

 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

4 

Unless this trend is reversed by the State lawmakers, the severity of the continued cuts in state shared revenues 

will continue to have a direct negative impact on the basic community services we are able to provide and 

communities like Escanaba will continue to be left behind because of the burdens of a broken system. Since 2002, 

the City of Escanaba has lost approximately $8,462,943 (2)  in revenue. 

 

Year Const. Payments 
Statutory 

Payments 
Total Payments 

Full Statutory 

Payments 

Statutory 

Reductions 
Full Funding 

Cumulative 

Difference 

2003 $ 872,820.00 $ 857,054.00 $ 1,729,874.00 $ 1,021,098.00 $ 61,838.00 $ 1,893,918.00 $ (164,044.00) 

2004 $ 863,338.00 $ 691,391.00 $ 1,554,729.00 $ 1,010,005.00 $ 318,614.00 $ 1,873,343.00 $ (482,658.00) 

2005 $ 883,941.00 $ 653,841.00 $ 1,537,782.00 $ 1,034,108.00 $ 380,267.00 $ 1,918,049.00 $ (862,925.00) 

2006 $ 898,990.00 $ 621,682.00 $ 1,520,672.00 $ 1,051,714.00 $ 430,032.00 $ 1,950,704.00 $   (1,292,957.00) 

2007 $ 880,310.00 $ 595,076.00 $ 1,475,386.00 $ 1,029,860.00 $ 434,784.00 $ 1,910,170.00 $   (1,727,741.00) 

2008 $ 909,702.00 $ 565,684.00 $ 1,475,386.00 $ 1,064,246.00 $ 498,562.00 $ 1,973,948.00 $   (2,226,303.00) 

2009 $ 857,958.00 $ 656,684.00 $ 1,423,642.00 $ 1,003,711.00 $ 438,027.00 $ 1,861,669.00 $   (2,664,330.00) 

2010 $ 831,675.00 $ 434,512.00 $ 1,266,187.00 $ 972,963.00 $ 538,451.00 $ 1,804,638.00 $   (3,202,781.00) 

2011 $ 847,091.00 $ 419,096.00 $ 1,266,187.00 $ 990,998.00 $ 571,902.00 $ 1,838,089.00 $   (3,774,683.00) 

2012 $ 901,640.00 $ 294,759.00 $ 1,196,399.00 $ 1,054,814.00 $ 760,055.00 $ 1,956,454.00 $   (4,534,738.00) 

2013 $ 920,305.00 $ 315,816.00 $ 1,236,121.00 $ 1,076,650.00 $ 760,834.00 $ 1,996,955.00 $   (5,295,572.00) 

2014 $ 941,887.00 $ 331,029.00 $ 1,272,916.00 $ 1,101,898.00 $ 770,869.00 $ 2,043,785.00 $   (6,066,441.00) 

2015 $ 956,680.00 $ 341,137.00 $ 1,297,817.00 $ 1,119,204.00 $ 778,067.00 $ 2,075,884.00 $   (6,844,502.00) 

2016 $ 955,764.00 $ 341,137.00 $ 1,296,901.00 $ 1,118,133.00 $ 776,996.00 $ 2,073,897.00 $   (7,621,504.00) 

2017 $ 1,010,849.00 $ 341,137.00 $ 1,351,986.00 $ 1,182,576.00 $ 841,439.00 $ 2,193,425.00 $   (8,462,943.00) 

 

In addition to the losses incurred due to the broken revenue sharing system, the City continues to incur expenses 

related to Tax Tribunal cases for such things as attorney and appraisal fees (over $1,000,000 to date) and refunds 

to property owners. There is currently 1 commercial case pending before the tax tribunal with an aggregate 

contested taxable value of $12,323,889 million, which equates to $209,506 of annual tax revenue at risk for the 

City. 

 

Additionally, we are experiencing increasing revenue cuts on an annual basis due to the escalating number of 

Disabled Veteran Property Tax exemptions (projected to be $58,000+ in the upcoming fiscal year). Here again, 

without replacement funding for this type of cut, cities like Escanaba are finding it difficult to fund expected 

services. 

 

 

Over the last decade, the City has made deep cuts which included the elimination of as many as 36 full-time City 

employee positions, the consolidation of departments and their management team, major changes to the City 

pension system and major changes to City/employee cost sharing in how medical insurance is paid for with the 

employee now paying 20% of the policy costs. Additionally, a change was negotiated in the five (5) collective 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

5 

bargaining agreements that changed the way vacation, personal days, sick leave and funeral leave are earned for 

newly hired employees in an attempt to control costs. This program also applies to newly-hired non-union 

employees. 

 

Major/Local Street Funds. Street improvement funding continues to be a major concern. Administration 

remains proactive in identifying funds to address shortfalls such as applying for competitive grants. Major Street 

Fund expenditures, which support the day-to-day activities such as maintenance and snow plowing, are proposed 

to be $3,174,487.  At the end of FY 2019-20, projections show an estimated fund balance of $1,756,019. 

 

Additionally, the City of Escanaba maintains 55.05 miles of local streets. Local Street Fund expenditures, which 

support the day-to-day activities such as maintenance and snow plowing, are proposed to be $893,822. At the end 

of FY 2019-20, projections show an estimated fund balance of $455,983. 

 

Each spring, the City Engineering Department conducts “Pavement Surface Evaluation and Rating (PASER)” 

inspections of all paved City streets. Using the PASER system, each street is scored a rating of 1 through 10 to 

evaluate the pavement surface condition. Each street is then entered into a condition category (poor, fair and 

good) and is assigned a treatment option. From that list, street projects are prioritized and selected based on 

surface condition, curbing condition, traffic volume, opinion of cost to repair and funds availability. Currently, 

approximately 64% of our street surfaces are considered to be substandard and in need of repair and upgrade, 

even after the resurfacing of 3rd Avenue North from Stephenson to Lincoln Rd. and Danforth Rd. The winter of 

2018-19 was one of the harshest and coldest in recent memory and took a toll on our roads. 

 

As we read this, the Governor is preparing to borrow $3.5 Billion to keep her campaign promise to “Fix the ‘Darn’ 

Roads”. Administration will continue to monitor the actions of the Michigan Legislature and Governor Gretchen 

Whitmer on road funding initiatives to determine how street funding projections will be impacted. The plan made 

public so far shows the Cut River area as the only road in the U.P. receiving any of the $3.5 billion. Cities and 

Road Commissions get their funding through Act 51, which fairly distributes monies generated by gas and weight 

taxes and registration fees. However, there is an increasing push downstate to reformulate the Act 51 distribution 

formula, possibly even a statewide ballot initiative, which would greatly disadvantage the Upper Peninsula. 
 

Major and Local Street Projects in the budget include: 

 

Planned Activity Amount 

Sheridan Rd. from 17th Ave N to N. City Limits Resurface (in conjunction with Bike Path) $ 175,000 
Resurfacing and Curb Repair City Wide - TBD $ 600,000 
Ludington Street Reconstruction-1st St. to 5th St (CDBG IR Grant $1,000,000) $ 1,415,000 

 

Electric Fund.  The Electric Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the electrical operation, is 

$14,037,168 representing a decrease of 4.51% from the previous year’s budget. As of June 30, 2019, the overall 

City Electric Fund net assets exceed $18.8 million. The current cash balance is approximately $11.75 million. 
 

Of notable interest, the Electric Fund budget includes funding for: 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI-Remote Read and SCADA equipment) $  1,800,000 
Bucket Truck Replacement $ 250,000 
Power Pole Replacement $ 200,000 
URD Replacement (Underground Primary Cables) $ 200,000 
West Side Substation Improvements $ 900,000 
Solar Generation-Phase 2 $  2,000,000 
Power Pole Replacement – Ludington Street $ 80,000 
Street Light Replacement – City Wide $ 80,000 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

6 

A 1.75% electrical rate increase is included in the upcoming FY 2020-21 Budget. 

 

 

Water Fund.  The Water Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Water Treatment Plant, is 

$2,840,040, representing an increase of 6% from the previous year’s budget. This is due to as-yet unknown 

demands from the State of Michigan. As of June 30, 2019, the overall City Water Fund net assets exceed $8 

million. The current cash balance is approximately $996,000.  

 

Of notable interest, the Water Fund budget includes funding for: 

 
Planned Activity Amount 

Water Main Replacement – TBD $ 635,000 
Distribution System – Replace Water Meters $ 220,000 
Ludington St. Reconstruction 1st  to 5th Street (CDBG IR Grant) $ 385,000 
Purchase of ¾ Ton Service Truck $ 60,000 
Fire Hydrant Painting $ 80,000 

 

Due to the ever changing landscape at the statewide level concerning water safety, Administration is anticipating 

that the State will introduce new requirements on drinking water safety as a result of the Flint, Michigan water 

crisis. Without knowing what exactly those requirements will be, this budget attempts to address some of the 

scenario’s that seem to be rising to the top. However, we do know regardless of what the State does or does not 

do we must continue to upgrade such things as our water meters as part of a water loss reduction initiative as well 

as finding and eliminating our continued loss of potable water within our distribution system. Lead service line 

replacement continues to cause some ambiguity. We need to develop a clear, fair policy on line replacement.

Projected Example of Customer Classifcation and Usage - Effective July 2020 
 

City (Utility) 
Residential 

500 kWh/yr 

Commercial 

4,000 kWh/yr 

Large Power 

200,000 kWH & 463 kW 

Escanaba 

City of Escanaba 

 
 

$ 771.00 

$ 4,590.84 

$ 4,853.40 

 
 

$ 203,230.80 

Menominee 

WPS 

 
 

$ 820.68 

 
 

$ 5,882.40 

 
 

$ 241,498.44 

Gladstone 

City of Gladstone 

 
 

$ 816.60 

$ 5,937.60 

$ 5,949.60 

 
 

$ 230,292.00 

Manistique 

Cloverland REA 

 
 

$ 834.00 

$ 4,903.20 

$ 5,083.20 

 
 

$ 234,916.80 

Iron Mountain 

WE Energies 

 
 

$ 941.52 

$ 6,061.80 

$ 6,233.52 

 
 

$ 277,192.80 

Marquette 

Marquette BLP 

 
 

$ 1,008.00 

 
 

$ 7,980.00 

 
 

$ 350,874.00 

Ishpeming 

UPPCO 

 
 

$ 1,308.24 

 
 

$ 7,916.64 

 
 

$ 247,416.72 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

7 

 
 

In the proposed FY 2020-21 budget, a water rate increase of 35% is being proposed to meet departmental 

obligations and needs.  With this increase, a typical residential customer using 60,000 gallons of water annually 

would experience a $183.00 annual increase beginning July 1, 2020.  

 

Wastewater Fund. The Wastewater Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, is $1,975,062, representing an increase of 7.2% from the previous year’s budget. As of June 30, 

2019, the overall City Wastewater Fund net assets exceed $7.1 million. The current cash balance is approximately 

$2.5 million. 
 

Of notable interest, the Wastewater Fund budget includes funding for: 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

Replacement of Ludington St. Lift Station Generator $ 65,000 
New 23

rd  Ave. Lift Station Generator $ 65,000 
Lake Shore Drive Lift Station Improvements $ 50,000 
Ludington St Reconstruction (CDBG IR grant $480,000) 1

st  Street to 5
th Street $ 705,000 

CIPP (Cured In-Place) and Manhole Restoration, Sites TBD $ 500,000 
Plant Operation Improvements $ 80,000 
Effluent/By-Pass/Dewatering Pump $ 90,000 

 

Due to increases in operating costs, a wastewater rate increase of 30% is included in the budget to meet 

departmental obligations and needs. With this increase, a typical residential customer using 60,000 gallons of 

water annually would experience a $104.52 annual increase beginning July 1, 2020. 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

8 

Solid Waste Collection. No (0%) garbage/recycling collection rate increases are proposed in the upcoming FY 

2020-21 Budget. 

 

 

Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment.  Within the budget is a Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment Fund. The 

purpose of the fund is to pay for salaries, wages and operations required for the repair and replacement, purchase 

and operation of motor vehicle equipment and motorized equipment, and for the purchase of equipment, materials 

and supplies to be used in the administration and operation of the fund. This fund is primarily funded by each 

department under a rental and rate schedule for each unit in the fund. 

 

The Motor Vehicle/Motorized Equipment budget is $1,071,425 representing an increase of .6% over the current 

fiscal year. At the end of FY 2018-19, the Motor Vehicle/ Motorized Equipment net asset balance was $313,562. 

At the end of FY 2019-20, projections show an estimated net asset balance of $299,728. In the FY 2020-21 Budget 

a projected net asset balance of $299,728 is being proposed. There have been some structural adjustments made 

to this fund in order to provide the revenue required to support the demands placed on the fund. There may be 

more adjustments made in the future if it is determined they are needed. 
 

The budget includes the purchase or upgrade of the following piece of equipment: 

 

Planned Activity Amount 

Police Patrol Vehicle-SUV $ 45,000 
¾ Ton 2WD Pickup w/Flatbed (Recreation) $ 35,000 
¾ Ton 2wd Chassis Flatbed-Public Works $ 35,000 

 

Library Fund. The Library Fund budget, which supports the day-to-day activities of the Library, is $614,964. 

As of June 30, 2020, the Library Fund balance is projected to equal $103,755. At the end of next fiscal year, June 

30, 2021, the Library Fund Balance is projected to be $20,271. The Escanaba Public Library is a community hub, 

offering essential early literacy programs for children and families, cultural enrichment and lifelong learning 

opportunities for all ages, and serving as a conduit to the technological resources and expertise citizens need to 

function in a digital world. 

 

For FY 2020-21, the Library will continue progress on implementing the partnerships and initiatives outlined in 

its strategic plan, with priority placed on technology instruction, local history preservation and marketing. The 

Library continues to build meaningful community connections that enable early literacy and after-school 

enrichment programs. 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

9 

The City's General Fund continues to be the primary funding source for the operations costs of the Library. 

Funding for enhanced programs and services is provided by the Friends of the Escanaba Public Library and further 

developed through grants and partnerships with local and regional partners. 

 

 

 

Department of Public Safety. The Escanaba Department of Public Safety was created in the mid-1970’s, at 

which time the police and fire departments were merged. In the budget, the Department of Public Safety represents 

45.1% of the City’s General Fund appropriation. In dollars, this translates to $4,404,271 in the upcoming fiscal 

year. This figure does not include the costs associated with Dispatching Operations. In the 2019-20 fiscal year 

budget, the department had 32 sworn officers including Officers, Command Staff, Detectives, two Captains and 

the Director. With a recent addition, our sworn officer (all ranks) to citizen ratio will be approximately 1 to 385. 

 

PERFORMANCE MATTERS 

PUBLIC SAFETY – CRIME, TRAFFIC, AND FIRE 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

Violent Crimes Per 1,000 2.90 2.02 3.15 2.7 3.39 

Property Crimes Per 1,000 41.7 52.4 57.2 37.0 23.28 

Traffic Injuries / Fatalities 73 51 46 75 33 

Traffic Tickets - City Infraction 773 705 654 863 1,226 

Traffic Tickets - Misdemeanor 185 145 128 191 170 

Call Volume - Incident 7,512 8,212 8,408 8,281 7,847 

Call Volume - Quick Call 14,557 14,811 14,835 15,155 16,181 

Fire Calls 99 140 138 184 114 

Escanaba Public Safety Case Clearance Rate 52% 56% 52% 49% 50% 

Statewide Case Clearance Rate (Averages) 36% 37% 36% 37% 35% 
 

Municipal Marina Operations. The Marina Fund accounts for the activities of the Escanaba Municipal Marina. 

The publicly-owned Marina has 165 slips, including areas used to broadside tie against the basin seawall. The 

Municipal Marina offers a full array of services, including seasonal slip rental, transient slip rental, fuel, pump 

out services, bath facilities, water and electric hook up and laundry equipment. An Assistant Marina Manager 

position (seasonal) has been filled this season only in order to provide for continuity of operations with the 

retirement of Larry Gravatt in July 2020. 

 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

10 

The Marina Fund budget is $257,038. At the end of FY 2018-19, the Marina Fund cash balance was $180,512, 

with a long- term debt obligation of $217,053. At the end of FY 2019-20, projections show an estimated cash 

balance of $137,178, with a long-term debt obligation of $201,759. In the FY 2020-21 budget, a projected cash 

balance of $115,124, with a long term debt obligation of $186,006 is being proposed. 
 

 

The Michigan Waterways Commission recommends rates for Harbors. In 2019-20, the Commission was 

recommending an increase to Rate 8 in the DNR Waterways fee schedule. Harbormaster Gravatt preferred to go 

halfway with the increase, or to implement it over 2 years. In the 2020-21 fee schedule the increase is completed. 

Some of the docks located within the Marina are reaching or have exceeded their recommended normal service 

life. To address these types of concerns, the Harbormaster was tasked with completing a debt restructuring plan 

which was done in late 2016. This was done so that the Harbormaster could put together a Capital Replacement, 

Repair and Improvement Plan for future upgrades. The Plan has been completed and accepted by the City Council, 

and will likely result in the necessity to increase future rates. The Pier 2 Dock Replacement project was completed 

in Summer 2019 for a total cost of $389,000, which required a 50% match from the City and the remaining 50% 

funded by a Waterways grant. High water levels have resulted in ongoing access and usability issues with the 

new dock. Remedies are being considered for Summer 2020. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

11 

Downtown Development Authority Fund. The Downtown Development Authority Fund budget, which 

supports the day-to-day activities of the Downtown Development Authority, is $312,584, representing an increase 

of 30.12% from the previous year’s budget.  The current cash balance is approximately $(15,066). 

 

Of notable interest, the Downtown Development Authority budget includes funding for: 
 

Planned Activity Amount 

DDA District Sidewalk and Curb Repair $ 12,000 
DDA Parking Lot Improvements $ 4,000 
Marketplace Kitchen Improvements-Licensed Commercial $ 65,000 

 

Escanaba Building Authority Fund. The Escanaba Building Authority Fund budget, which supports the day-

to-day activities and maintenance cost associated with the City Hall/Library Complex, is $308,187, representing 

a decrease from the previous year’s budget. The projected cash balance is approximately $217,000. 

 

Master Fee Schedule. Included with the budget is a “Master Fee Schedule” for services that are provided to City 

of Escanaba residents and non-residents alike. The intent is to have the fees reviewed annually by the City Council 

and adopted by resolution (unless otherwise mandated by State or Federal law) as part of the budget approval 

process. While the primary mission of government is to satisfy community needs, many City services solely 

benefit specific individuals or businesses and are subject to separate fees. As a matter of practice, the City will 

continue the policy of not subsidizing activities of private interest through general tax and utility rate revenues. 

Fees that do not recover the cost of providing the service result in a subsidy, which shifts away from other critical 

and high priority programs that may not have similar cost recovery options. 

 

Personnel and Staffing. Full-time staffing levels in the budget include 116 employees. Part-time staffing levels 

are at 31 employees. Seasonal employee levels will fluctuate throughout the year, depending on the operational 

needs of the various departments. Routinely, City Administration examines all job vacancies closely to ensure 

that our human resources are aligned with our operational needs and our financial means. The Retirement of the 

Treasurer/HR Director, Bob Valentine, allowed for the promotion of the Manager’s Executive Assistant to that 

position. Investment fund management has been outsourced to First Bank. The former Planning/Zoning/Code 

Enforcement position’s duties were divided. Code Enforcement is now housed in Public Safety and is effective. 

The Planning and Zoning Director was promoted from the Confidential Secretary position. The Confidential 

Secretary position was filled, but the Manager’s Executive Assistant position has been left vacant. Savings are 

being experienced, but an evaluation should be done this year to address needs in Administration. 

 

Six (6) Collective Bargaining Units have agreements expiring June 30, 2020. There has been the creation of a 

new bargaining unit representing Clerical Staff in various departments, making 6 units all together. The 

negotiation process has begun for all 6 units. 

 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

12 

Health Insurance. The budget takes into account a health premium increase of 6.4% as compared to less than 

1% in the current fiscal year budget, depending on coverage, as a result of a contractual price increase from the 

Michigan Conference of Teamsters. In the budget, employee health insurance premium contributions will 

continue to be 20% of premium costs. 

 

Pension Obligations. Over the last decade, the City has taken the necessary steps needed to address the unfunded 

pension obligations throughout the various pension plans. The City offers its non-public safety officer full-time 

employees hired prior to July 1, 2005 a defined benefit retirement pension through the Municipal Employees' 

Retirement System of Michigan (MERS). Based on the latest annual actuarial valuation report from MERS dated 

December 31, 2018, the City's plan is 64% funded, up from the 58% reported for the previous year. Employees 

full-time and part-time hired July 1, 2005 or later are provided with a MERS defined contribution plan. Under 

this plan, the City contributes a mandatory 4% of wages and will match the employee up to an additional 3%. 

Public Safety officers hired prior to July 1, 2014 participate in the Act 345 pension. Based on the latest annual 

actuarial valuation report date June 30, 2019, the plan is 88.9% funded, up from the 85.5% reported the previous 

year. Public Safety officers hired July 1, 2015 or later are provided with a defined contribution plan through 

ICMA. Under this plan, the City contributes a mandatory 10% of wages and the employee contributes a mandatory 

6% of wages with the option to contribute as much as they like. As a result of the pension plan changes and 

marketplace conditions, funding the closed out plans continues to be an increasingly larger percent of payroll and 

a general stress to the overall budget city-wide. The aforementioned defined benefits and defined contribution 

plans are the only post-retirement benefits offered to employees. Retiree health insurance is not offered and never 

has been therefore, no OPEB liability exists for that purpose. 

 

Budget Schedule. The budget has been developed with input from the City employees, City Council, City Boards, 

Commissions, and Committees and the public. This input is invaluable in terms of identifying the needs and 

desires of the community. The following schedule on the following page reviews/actions has or will take place: 
 

December 27, 2019 Budget papers to department heads; operating budgets due 1/20/20. 

January 3, 2020 
Publish notice of first Public Hearing for the 2020-21 City budgets at the 1/16/20 
regular Council meeting. 

January 9, 2020 City Council Budget Work Session 

January 16, 2020 
(Regular Council Meeting) First Public Hearing for citizen input into the 2020-21 City 
budgets. 

January 20, 2020 Departmental operating budgets due. 

February 7, 2020 
Publish notice of second Public Hearing for the 2020-21 City budgets at the 2/20/20 
regular Council meeting. 

February 10, 2020 First draft of budget requests to City Manager. 

February 20, 2020 
(Regular Council Meeting) Second Public Hearing for citizen input into the 2020-21 
City budgets. 

March 6, 2020 Publish notice of third Public Hearing for the 2020-21 City budgets at the 3/19/20 
regular Council meeting. 

March 19, 2020 (Regular Council Meeting) Third Public Hearing for citizen input into the 2020-21 City 
budgets. 

March 20, 2020 Council receives tentative copy of the City budgets. 

April 6, 2020 Budget work session open to the public. 

April 7, 2020 Budget work session open to the public. 



Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

13 

 

 

While it is my privilege to author this budget message, thanks must be given to the City Council, Department 

Heads, City employees, City Boards, Commission and Committee Members, and community members who 

committed themselves to assisting in this budget process. Collectively, as a team, I remain confident that the City 

will continue to utilize the combined knowledge and experience in meeting the challenges that lay ahead in 

providing more efficient City services and growing the community economically. As City Manager, I am 

fortunate to have a Council, community and dedicated employee support in providing the residents with the 

necessary resources, flexibility and funding which allows us all to live in a community that we can be proud of. 

 

Electric Superintendent, Mike Furmanski – 9:18 a.m. 
 

Mr. Furmanski reviewed the 2020/21 proposed City Electric Budget with Council. The following 
was discussed: 
 

• Income, Capital Expenditures, and Operating Statements; 

• Discussed to increase city’s solar generation capacity; 

• Discussed a new Solar Facility; 

• Discussed Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI); 

• Request for an Electric Truck; 

• Electric Rate increase; 

• Capacity Purchases; 

• Discussed declining revenues;  

• Pole replacements; 

• Discussed bidding out projects; 

• Rate Study; 

• Discussed Meter Replacement and Charges; 

• Transmission and Distribution Statements; 

• Request for an increase in Salary. 
  

April 8, 2020 Budget work session, if required, open to the public. 

April 16, 2020 (Regular Council Meeting) Council passes resolution to set May 7th as the fourth 
Public Hearing on the 2020-21 City budgets. 

April 17, 2020 Budgets are revised, based on the work sessions, and are made available to the public. 

April 20, 2020 Publish notice of Public Hearings on budgets. 

May 7, 2020 (Regular Council Meeting) Public Hearing on 2020-21 City budgets. 

 
May 11, 2020 

Publish notice of final hearing and adoption of 2020-21 City budgets. This notice must 
be at least 6 days prior to the budget adoption and must contain language to the effect 
that the tax rate will be a subject at this meeting, assuming that the City does not 
intend to roll back the millage by the base tax reduction fraction. 

 
 

May 21, 2020 

Public Hearing and adoption of City budgets. First reading of the Appropriations 
Ordinance, including the millage rate, and first reading of the Tax Levy Ordinance, with 
second reading and adoption set for the May 28th special meeting. First reading of 
Utility Ordinances, with second reading and adoption set for the Monday, June 1st 
special meeting. 

May 28, 2020 (Special Council Meeting) Second reading and adoption of the Tax Levy Ordinance 
and the Appropriations Ordinance. 

June 1, 2020 (Special Council Meeting) Second reading and adoption of the Utility Ordinances. 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

 

14 

 

 The time being 10:08 a.m., the Council recessed. 
 

The Council came back into regular session at 10:13 a.m. and reviewed the following budgets. 
 
 
Downtown Development Authority (DDA) – Judy Schroeder 10:13 a.m. 
 
City Controller Becotte reviewed the DDA Budget with Council and discussed the following 
budget line items: 
  

• Revenue and Fund Balance; 

• Discussed Deficit Elimination Plan; 

• Market Place Kitchen project; 

• Continue to fund the Façade Program; 

• Hiring of a new Executive DDA Director; 

• Grant opportunities. 
 
  
 Public Safety Department, Robert LaMarche – 10:21 a.m. 
  

Public Safety Director LaMarche reviewed the following 2020/21 proposed budget items with 
Council: 

 

• Provided a recap of the current budget year which included Staffing levels, training needs 
obtained by Officers, and equipment purchases; 

• Discussed Captain positions and requested to raise their salaries; 

• Clothing supplies jumped because of new officers coming in; 

• Request for Professional Services; 

• Request for Cell Phones in Police Vehicles; 

• Request increase for Parking/Traffic citations; 

• Capital Out-Lay Building Improvements; 

• Request for increase for Scott Air Packs;  

• Request for Fire Hose; 

• Request for a new Police Vehicle; 

• Request for Bullet Proof Vests; 

• Act 302-Public Safety Training; 

• Discussed training, education and travel budgets; 

• Gave overview on the Community Preservation Department; 

• Request secretary for 5 hours a week to help out Code Compliance Inspector Blaine 
DeGrave; 

• Request training for Code Compliance Inspector; 

• Other Funds – Central Dispatch; hard time finding part time employees. 
 

The time being 10:54 a.m., the Council recessed. 
 
The Council came back into regular session at 11:00 a.m. and reviewed the following budgets. 

 
 
 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

 

15 

 

City Clerk, Phil DeMay – 11:00 a.m.  
 
Elections Budget: 

• Request for new Laptops for E-Pollbooks; 

• Request for new Election Signage, “Vote Here” signs; 

• Request for increase in postage. 

Clerk Office Budget: 
• Request for Annual Code of Ordinances Supplement Code of Ordinances on the Internet; 

• Request for Travel Expenses, Clerk’s Institute & Summer Conference; 

• Request for Stand-Up Desk; 

• Request for Printer. 

• Discussed an increase in Salary for City Clerk. 

Office Equipment Budget: 

• Replacing old cable in City Hall and Public Safety; 

• Request for Microsoft Office Suites upgrade; 

• New Switches for network; 

• Camera System in Council Chambers; 

The time being 11:16 a.m., the Council recessed. 
 
The Council came back into regular session at 11:26 a.m. and reviewed the following budgets. 
 
 
Marina Fund - Larry Gravatt – 11:29 a.m. 
 
Mr. Gravatt reviewed the Marina Budget with Council and discussed the following items: 
 

• Reviewed Marina Fund-Income Statement, dock fees, services; 

• Request for Porta-Potty; 

• Dock repairs and maintenance; 

• Discussed condition of docks; 

• Discussed a platform for the L-Dock; 

• Discussed having firepits; 

• Request for Night Watchman/Security Cameras; 

• Discussed how to make the Harbor more attractive to boaters. 
 

Council consensus to break for lunch at 11:57 a.m. 
 
Council came back into regular session at 1:01 p.m. 
 
 
Water/Wastewater Superintendent, Jeff Lampi – 1:01 p.m. 
 
Mr. Lampi reviewed the following 2020/21 proposed Water/Wastewater budget items with 
Council: 

 
 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

 

16 

 

WasteWater Department: 

• Proposed projects, capital purchases and proposed budget increase; 

• Engineering Costs for Plant Improvements; 

• Wastewater Rate Increase; 

• Request for 23rd Ave. Lift Station On-Site Generator; 

• Replace Ludington Lift Station On-Site Generator; 

• Replace Ferric Pumps; 

• Chlorine Room Improvements; 

• Effluent/By-Pass/Dewatering Pump; 

• Request for a Hot Water Pressure Washer; 

• Lake Shore Drive Lift Station Upgrade; 

• CIPP & Manhole Restoration-Sites; 

• Ludington Street Reconstruction Project; 

• Computer System Expansion; 

• Request for Drying Oven; 

• Collection System Infiltration Study; 

• Discussed Sump-Pump issues. 
 

Water Department: 

• Income, Operation, and Capital Expenditure Statements; 

• Replace Turbidity Meters; 

• Replace 4” & 16” Mag Meter; 

• Replace Chorine Scales; 

• Request for ¾ Ton Van with Walk-In Service Box; 

• Request for Miscellaneous Tools to Outfit Van; 

• Automatic Flushing Stations; 

• Disinfection byproducts system; 

• Discussed Water Main Replacements; 

• Ludington Street Reconstruction; 

• Fire Hydrants appearance; 

• Discussed new water meters; 

• Discussed Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI); 

• Water Rate Increase; 
 

 
City Council – 2:05 p.m. 
 

• Discussed the MML Conference; 

• Request for Education & Training; 

• Request for Travel Expenses. 

 
 
City Manager Jordan briefly reviewed his Department Fiscal Year Budget. 
 
 
City Controller, Melissa Becotte – 2:13 p.m. 

 

• Request for increase in pay for Payroll Clerk; 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

 

17 

 

• City Hall Network Rental; 

• Request for additional Monitors and Monitor Arms. 

Council continued to review the following General Fund Budget requests: 

• Discussed Revenues and Fund Balance; 

• City Hall and Grounds; 

• Request for Crossing Guards; 

• Request for Street Lighting; 

• Request for Community Services; 

• Request for City Band; 

• Request for Historical Museum, removed from policy; 
• Request for Insurance and Bonds; 

• Request for Transfer to Other Funds. 
  

The time being 2:33 p.m., the Council recessed. 
 
The Council came back into regular session at 2:41 p.m. and reviewed the following budgets. 
 
 
City Assessor, James McNeil – 2:41 p.m. 
 
Assessor McNeil reviewed Department budget with Council.  The following was discussed: 

 

• Tax Tribunal update; 

• Doing more Field Work; 

• U.P. Assessors Association Memberships & Dues;  

• U.P. Assessor’s School Education & Training; 

• Assistant Assessor update; 

• Board of Review Budget. 

 
Council continued to review the following General Fund Budget requests: 

• EBA Fund-Income Statement; 

• Request for Capital Expenditures; 

• Concrete Work at Back Entrance – including Snow Melt System Repairs; 

• Replace ADA Door Opener; 

• Seal Brick on City Hall and Library Building; 

• Fund Budget Request Workpaper; 

• Hiring own Custodial Staff; 

• HVAC Maintenance. 

 
 

Planning/Zoning Administrator, Roxanne Spencer – 2:59 p.m. 
 
Planning/Zoning Administrator Spencer provided an overview of her department with Council. 
 

• Request for Zoning Ordinance Software; 

• Request for Repair to Equipment; 



 
Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 

 

18 

 

• BS&A Software purchase discussion; 

• More training for the Planning Commission. 

GENERAL DISCUSSION – None 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
Hearing no further public comment and the time being 3:19 p.m., O’Connell moved, the Council 
recessed until 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 7, 2020. 

 
Respectfully submitted 

 
 

 
 
Tammy Weissert, CMC    Approved: _____________________ 
Deputy City Clerk       Marc D. Tall, Mayor 



 

 
City of Escanaba 

Virtual WebEx Special Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 7, 2020 

 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted December 18, 2020, the Council of the City of 
Escanaba convened in special session Virtual WebEx at 9:04 a.m., to begin the review 
and discussion of the proposed 2020/21 City Budget. 

 
Present: Mayor Marc D. Tall, Council Members, Ralph B. Blasier, Tyler D. DuBord, 

Karen S. Moore, and Peggy O’Connell  
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager Patrick S. Jordan, City Controller Melissa Becotte, City Clerk 

Phil DeMay, Deputy City Clerk Tammy Weissert, Department Heads, 
media, and members of the public 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
The following Department Heads presented their budgets: 
 
Public Works/Engineer, Robert Becotte – 9:06 a.m. 

 
Public Works Director/Engineer Robert Becotte reviewed the 2020/21 proposed Public 
Works/Engineering budget with Council. The following was reviewed: 
 

• Request for Celebration – Flags; 

• Request for Cross Walks; 

• Request for Care of Trees and Shrubs; 

• General Fund Public Works and Engineering budgets; 

• Sanitary Landfill, and Landfill Road Clean-up; 

• Delta County Solid Waste Landfill Fees; 

• Solid Waste Collection; 

• Composting Activities;  

• Request for Recycling; 

• Snowplowing of Alleys; 

• Request for Parks, seasonal workers; 

• Work on Bandshell & Water Fountain; 

• Alley Paving/Maintenance; 

• Resurfacing of Streets; 

• Discussed Non-Motorized Pathway System; 

• Ludington Street Reconstruction; 

• Request for Patching and Crack Filling;   

• Request for Storm Sewer and Roadside Drains;  

• Grass and Weed Cutting; 

• Request for Sweeping and Flushing;  

• Request for Traffic Service;  

• Request for Snow Plowing and Snow Removal; 

• Request Blades for Graders; 



Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

 
2 

• Request for Ice Control;  

• Request for Administrative and Engineering; 

• Bridge Inspection Program;  

• Reviewed Local Street Projects; 

• Request for Capital Outlay-Street Preservation; 

• Request for Patching and Crack Filling; 

• Request for Storm Sewers and Roadside Drains; 

• Request for Sweeping and Flushing; 

• Request for Grading; 

• Request for Dust Control; 

• Request for Traffic Service; 

• Discussed Wage Increase for Public Works Assistant Superintendent. 
 

 
Library Director, Carolyn Stacey – 9:57 a.m. 
 
Library Director Carolyn Stacey reviewed the 2020/21 proposed Library Budget with 
Council. The following was reviewed: 
 

• Overview of the Department, Library Strategic Planning process, daily programs, 
services, and technology’s, and strategies the Library provides the community and 
Delta County; 

• Discussed Library Fees; 

• Discussed Penal Fines; 

• Request for a Task Force; 

• Library Revenues and Fund Balance; 

• State of Michigan Library Funding; 

• Request for increase in education. 
 

The time being 10:21 a.m., the Council recessed. 
 

The Council came back into regular session at 10:31 a.m. and reviewed the following 
budgets. 

 
 
Recreation Director, Kim Peterson – 10:31 a.m. 
 
Recreation Director Peterson reviewed the following Recreational Department budgets 
she was responsible for with Council: 

 

• Provided an overview of Departmental activities and Civic Center Improvements; 

• Request for Fourth of July/New Year’s Eve;  

• Request for Summer Sports;  

• Request for Lawn Mower Bagger Attachment; 

• Request to reconstruct Ludington Park Tennis Courts; 

• Request for Wading Pool;  

• Request for Winter Sports;  

• Request for Beach;  

• Request for Civic Center Activities; 

• Request for Tourism Promotion; 



Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

 
3 

• Discussed Non-Motorized Pathway System; 

• Need to Update 5-Year Recreation Plan; 

• Discussed a Wage Increase and Reclassification for Recreation Foreman.  
 
 

Human Resources Director/City Treasurer, Kim Gustafson – 10:57 a.m. 
 
Ms. Gustafson reviewed the following 2020/21 proposed budget items with Council: 
 

• Human Resources and Treasurer’s Department Budgets. 

• Request for Online Skill Testing; 

• BS&A Training; 

• Printing and publishing; 

• Software costs. 
 
 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 
During discussion, it was Council consensus to make the following changes to the 
Proposed 2020/21 Fiscal Year Budget: 
 

• Electric Vehicle for Electric Department postponed at least for another year; 

• 4% Wage Increase, $97,000, for Electric Superintendent Mike Furmanski; 

• 5% Wage Increase, for Public Safety Captains; 

• $2,000 for New Signage for Elections, “Voter Here” Signs; 

• Pay City Clerk as IT Professional, $67,000, and will also get his contractual raise 
of $5,000 once CMC is achieved; 

• $35,500 for Planning & Zoning Software & Training; 

• 3% Wage Increase for Department Heads and Non-Union Staff;  

• Overhaul of Zoning Ordinance at a cost of $30,000 postponed for at least another 
year; 

• $30,000 for Ash Borer Treatment for Trees; 
 
 
Blasier moved, O’Connell seconded, to adopt the Master Fee Schedule as written. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
  
Ayes: Blasier, O’Connell, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Tall 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
Council consensus to break for lunch at 11:55 a.m. 

 
Council came back into regular session at 1:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 



Annual 2020/21 Budget Work Session 
 

 
4 

 
After further discussion, Blasier moved, O’Connell seconded, to approve all changes to 
the Proposed 2020/21 Fiscal Year Budget. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
  
Ayes: Blasier, O’Connell, Moore, DuBord, Mayor Tall  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
Further discussion with Mr. Lampi on the following 2020/21 proposed Water/Wastewater 
budget items with Council: 
 

• Wastewater Plant Improvements; 

• Discussed Bids the Wastewater Department received; 

• Discussed alternative options; 

• Wastewater Rate Increases; 

• Water Rate Increases; 

• Line Replacements.  
 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 
 

Hearing no further public comment, O’Connell moved, the Council adjourned at 2:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Tammy Weissert, CMC   Approved:  _______________________ 
Deputy City Clerk      Marc D. Tall, Mayor  

























Agenda Item: UB   - 1
Date: 04/16/2020__ _ 

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 04/16/2020 

Name: Patrick Jordan 

Department: Administration 

Item: Request from Bay de Noc Apartments for PILOT Ordinance No. 1223 

Meeting date requested: 04/16/2020 

Explanation for request: 

Administration is requesting the City Council to consider approval and adoption of the 
Bay de Noc PILOT Ordinance No. 1223, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 26 -Taxation 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Escanaba. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1223 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 26 - TAXATION 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

 
 
 THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 
 

CHAPTER  I 
 
 Chapter 26 - Taxation of the Escanaba Code of Ordinances is hereby amended 
by adding Division 9, Sponsor Bay de Noc Apartments Limited Dividend Housing 
Association Limited Partnership, to read as follows:  
 

CHAPTER 26 - TAXATION 
 

ARTICLE III, SERVICE CHARGE IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES 
FOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

 
DIVISION 9, Sponsor Bay de Noc Apartments Limited Dividend Housing 

Association Limited Partnership 
 
Sec. 26-90.  Preamble. 
 
 It is acknowledged that it is a proper public purpose of the State of Michigan and 
its political subdivisions to provide affordable housing for its citizens of low income and 
to encourage the development of such housing by providing for a service charge in lieu 
of property taxes in accordance with the State Housing Development Authority Act of 
1966 (1966 PA 346, as amended, MCLA Section 125.1401 et seq, MSA Section 
116.114(l) et seq)..  The city is authorized by this Act to establish or change the service 
charge to be paid in lieu of taxes by any or all classes of housing exempt from taxation 
under this Act at any amount it chooses not to exceed the taxes that would be paid but 
for this Act.  It is further acknowledged that such housing for persons of low income is a 
public necessity, and as the city will be benefitted and improved by such housing, the 
encouragement of the same by providing certain real estate tax exemption for such 
housing is a valid public purpose; further, that the continuation of the provisions of this 
article for tax exemption and the service charge in lieu of all ad valorem taxes during the 
period contemplated in this ordinance are essential to the determination of economic 
feasibility of housing developments which are constructed and financed in reliance on 
such tax exemption. 
 
 The city acknowledges that Sponsor Bay de Noc Apartments Limited Dividend 
Housing Association Limited Partnership has offered, subject to receipt of the allocation 
under the LIHTC Program by the Michigan State Housing Development Authority to 
construct, own and operate a housing development identified as Bay de Noc 
Apartments on certain property located at 500 N. 26th Street in the City to serve low 
income persons and families, and that the Sponsor has offered to pay the City on 
account of this housing development an annual service charge for public services in lieu 
of all ad valorem property taxes.  
  
Sec. 26-91.  Definitions. 
 
 All terms not herein defined shall have the meanings given them in the State 
Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, being Public Act of 1966, of the State of 
Michigan, as amended. 
 
  1. Act means the State Housing Development Authority Act, being 

Michigan Public Act of 1966, as amended. 
 
 
2. Annual shelter rent means the total collections, including rental 

subsidy, during an agreed annual period from all occupants of a 
housing development representing rent or occupancy charges, 
exclusive of charges for gas, electricity, heat, late fees, or other 
utilities furnished to the occupants. 



Ordinance No. 1223 
 

2 

 

3. Authority means the Michigan State Housing Development 
Authority. 

 
4. Housing development means a development which contains a 

significant element of housing for persons of low income and such 
elements of other housing, commercial, recreational, industrial, 
communal, and educational facilities as the authority determines 
improve the quality of the development as it relates to housing for 
persons of low income. 

 
5. Low Income or Moderate Income Persons means families and 

persons eligible to move into a housing development. 
 
  6. Mortgage loan means a loan to be made by the authority to the 

sponsor for the construction and/or permanent financing of the 
housing development. 

 
  7. Sponsor means Bay de Noc Apartments Limited Dividend Housing 

Association Limited Partnership and any entity that receives or 
assumes a mortgage loan.  

 
  8. Utilities means charges for gas, electric, water, sanitary sewer 

service and other utilities furnished to the occupants of the housing 
development. 

 
Section 26-92, Class of housing development. 
 
 It is determined that the class of housing development to which the tax 
exemption shall apply and for which a service charge shall be paid in lieu of such taxes 
shall be housing developments for low income persons and families that are financed or 
with a mortgage loan.  It is further determined that Bay de Noc Apartments is of this 
class. 
 
Section 26-93.  Establishment of annual service charge. 
 
 The housing development known as Bay de Noc Apartments and the property on 
which it is located shall be exempt from all property taxes as of or effective on the 
December 31st of the year the certified notification of exemption was filed with the City 
Assessor prior to November 1st. The city acknowledges that the sponsor and the 
authority have established the economic feasibility of the housing development in 
reliance upon the enactment and continuing effect of this ordinance and the qualification 
of the housing development for the exemption from all ad valorem property taxes and a 
payment in lieu of taxes as established in this ordinance.  Therefore, in consideration of 
the Sponsor’s offer to construct and operate the housing project, the City agrees to 
accept payment of an annual service charge for public services in lieu of all ad valorem 
property taxes.  Subject to receipt of a Mortgage Loan or IRS Section 42 Low Income 
Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), the annual service charge shall be equal to 5% of the 
Annual Shelter Rents actually collected by the housing development during each 
operating year. 
 
Section 26-94.  Limitation on the payment of the annual service charge. 
 
 Notwithstanding Section 26-93, the service charge to be paid each year in lieu of 
taxes for the part of the housing development which is tax exempt and which is 
occupied by other than low income persons or families shall be equal to the full amount 
of the taxes which shall be paid on that portion of the housing development if the 
housing development were not tax exempt.   
 
Section 26-95.  Contractual effect of this article. 
 
 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 15(a)(5) of the act to the contrary, a 
contract between the city and the Sponsor, with the authority as third party beneficiary 
under the contract, to provide tax exemption and accept payments in lieu of taxes, as 
previously described, is effectuated by enactment of this article. 
 



Ordinance No. 1223 
 

3 

 

Section 26-96.  Payment of service charge. 
 
 The service charge in lieu of taxes as determined under the article shall be 
payable in the same manner as general property taxes are payable to the city and 
distributed to the several units levying the general property tax in the same proportion 
as prevailed with the general property tax in the previous calendar year.  The annual 
payment for each operating year shall be paid on or before on or before July 1st of the 
following year.  Collection procedures shall be in accordance with the provisions of the 
General Property Tax Act (1893 PA 206, as amended; MCL 211.1, et seq). 
 
Section 26-97.  Duration. 
 
 This article shall remain in effect and shall not terminate so long as the mortgage 
loan remains outstanding and unpaid or the authority and the housing development 
remains subject to income and rent restrictions under the LIHTC Program but in no case 
longer than sixteen (16) years.  
 

CHAPTER II 
SEVERABILITY 

 
 The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be 
severable, and should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by and 
court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, the same shall not affect 
the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or any section or provision of this Ordinance, 
other than the section or provision so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
 

CHAPTER III 
REPEALING CHAPTER 

 
 All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency of conflict. 

 
 

CHAPTER IV 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

  
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its passage and 

publication, as provided in the City Charter. 
 
APPROVED:      APPROVED: 
 
 
                                                                         ___________                                                         
John Bergman, City Attorney   Marc D. Tall, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
           ______                                                                   
       Phil Demay, City Clerk 
        

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an 

Ordinance duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting held on the ____ day of ________, 2020, and was 
published in the Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba 
on _______________, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said 
meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being 
Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept 
and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 
 
        
       ____________________________                                                                      
                                                                           Phil Demay, City Clerk 



Agenda Item: UB-2
Date:  

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 04/16/2020

Name: Patrick Jordan 

Department: Administration 

Item: Municipal Services Agreement - Bay de Noc Apartments. 

Meeting date requested: 04/16/2020

Explanation for request: 

Wada Cooper Companies is requesting City Council approval of a Municipal Services 

Agreement for the property located at 500 North 26th Street. 



Page 1 of 3 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS MUNICIPAL SERVICES AGREEMENT entered into this ____ day of _________, 

2020 between BAY DE NOC APARTMENTS LIMITED DIVIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION 

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Michigan limited partnership of 500 South Front Street, 10
th

 Floor, 

Columbus, Ohio 43215, (hereinafter referred to as the “OWNER”) and Escanaba, a Michigan 

municipal corporation, of 410 Ludington Street, Escanaba Michigan 49829 (hereinafter referred to as 

the “CITY”). 

RECITALS 

A. The OWNER intends to purchase and develop a housing project for low to moderate

income families, to be known as   Bay de Noc Apartments, financed in part by Low

Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC), administered by the Michigan State Housing

Development Authority (MSHDA) on land legally described on Exhibit “A”,

(hereinafter referred to as the “PROJECT”).

B. The OWNER desires to guarantee that certain municipal services will be provided to

the PROJECT during the term that the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (hereinafter referred

to as the “PILOT”) Ordinance for this PROJECT is in place, such municipal services

to exclude normal water, sewer, and other utility charges as well as special

assessment charges (which must be paid separately and at duly established rates) and

similar charges and to include only:

1. Emergency services, including police and ambulance (at normal published

rates) and fire service specifically administered through the CITY;

2. Other miscellaneous services as may, from time to time, be mutually agreed

to for the benefit of the PROJECT;

3. Said municipal services shall be provided in the customary way, in a

competent and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with all laws, rules

and regulations of the United States of America, State of Michigan, County

of Delta, and City of Escanaba or other applicable jurisdictions or bodies.

(All of the above collectively referred to as “Municipal Services”) 

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 



Page 2 of 3 

1. The payment for Municipal Services shall be computed as follows: Sixteen Thousand

Five Hundred Dollars ($16,500.00) will be paid concurrent with the annual PILOT

payment for Bay de Noc Apartments.  Each year the annual MSA payment shall be

adjusted by 2%.

2. Payment for Municipal Services shall commence at the time the first PILOT payment

is made and will remain in effect for as long as a payment-in-lieu-of-taxes ordinance

is in place for the project.

3. The OWNER shall utilize individual city metering for water and electric services to

all residential units.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Municipal Services Agreement is executed as of the day 

and year first written above. 

WITNESSES: BAY DE NOC APARTMENTS LIMITED 

DIVIDEND HOUSING ASSOCIATION 

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, A Michigan 

Limited Partnership 

By: BAY DE NOC APARTMENTS GP, 

LLC,  

       An Ohio limited liability company 

       Its General Partner 

By: Woda Cooper General Partner, LLC 

        An Ohio limited liability company 

        Its Sole Member 

By: Woda Cooper Communities, LLC 

       An Ohio limited liability company 

   Its Sole Member 

By: 

David Cooper Jr., Vice President & 

Associate General Counsel 

CITY OF ESCANABA 

By:  

Its: City Manager 



Page 3 of 3 

EXHIBIT A 

ASSESSORS SUBD NO 1    To Be Completed 



Agenda Item: UB_- 3

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 4-16-2020 

Name: Robert LaMarche 

Department: EDPS 

Item: Traffic control orders 

Explanation for request: 
. 

To permanently place no parking signs in the City Hall parking lot from 10:00pm-6:00am 

See attached Traffic Control order. 



























Agenda Item: NB-2
4-16-2020 

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 3/11/2020 

Name: Jeff Lampi�, 

Department: Water 

Item: Intent to Apply form for DWRF Loan 

Explanation for request: 
Administration is requesting City Council's approval to submit the attached "Intent to 
Apply Form", requesting a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWRF), loan in the 
amount of Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000.00) for the purpose of replacing aging 
infrastructure within the existing water distribution system. 







Agenda Item: NB 3
 
Date: 04-16-2020

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 3/13/20 

Name: Roxanne Spencer 

Department: Planning & Zoning 

Item: RRC Recertification Action Plan Approval 

Meeting date requested: 04/16/2020· 

Explanation for request: 

Administration is requesting approval of the Redevelopment Ready Community (RRC) 

Action Plan which outlines the timetable for completing required actions to achieve 

recertification. 



RRC Recertification Action Plan – Escanaba 

The table below reflects the agreed upon timetable for bringing the city back into full alignment 
with the RRC Best Practices in order to maintain the city’s certification status. This table reflects 
all the recommended actions from the recertification memo issued in December 2019 including 
some which have since been completed. 

This action plan has been agreed upon by the RRC team and city representatives as of XX March 
2020. 

Criteria Description Proposed Action to Take Target Date 
1.1.1 Master Plan Update the Planning Commission annual 

report to include a progress update on 
the city’s efforts to achieve the master 
plan goals and actions. 

Complete – Feb 
2020 

1.1.4 Capital Improvements 
Plan 

Extend the CIP to include six years 
(currently only five). May 2020 

1.2 Public Participation Plan Update the public participation plan to 
remove outdated references and a more 
active evaluation component. 

Complete – Feb 
2020 

2.1 Zoning Regulations CUPPAD is currently conducting a zoning 
audit using RRC funding. Once that audit 
is complete, there may be minor updates 
needed to fully align. 

Audit Complete 

3.1.3 Development Review 
Process – Conceptual 
Meetings 

Clearly advertise the availability of 
conceptual review meetings on the 
website.  

Create a checklist or guidance document 
outlining how to prepare and what will 
be covered. 

April 2020 

3.1.5 Development Review 
Process – Internal 
Review Process 

Document the internal review process – 
from application to zoning permit. September 2020 

3.1.6 Development Review 
Process – Prompt Action 

Remove the required public hearing for 
permitted uses. This hearing is not legally 
required and adds cost, time, and 
uncertainty for projects which much 
legally be approved as long as they meet 
the zoning ordinance requirements. 

May 2020 

3.2.1 Guide to Development Develop a more detailed online guide to 
development as part of the new website. April 2020 

4.1.1* Recruitment and 
Orientation 

Develop position descriptions for 
development-related boards.  May 2020 



Document the appointment process from 
application to orientation. 

4.1.2* Recruitment and 
Orientation 

Complete the city’s current efforts to 
create a boards and commissions 
handbook, including orientation sections. 

May 2020 

4.2.2* Recruitment and 
Education – Strategy & 
Tracking 

Create training strategies for 
development-related boards and 
commissions 

May 2020 

4.2.2* Recruitment and 
Education – Consistent 
Reminders 

Add training as a standing agenda item 
for development-related boards. March 2020 

4.2.4 Recruitment and 
Education – Joint 
Meeting 

Hold a joint meeting or training with 
council, planning commission, and DDA 
(others as desired) at least annually. 

Complete – Feb 
2020 

5.1.2 Economic Development 
Strategy - Reporting 

Included the master plan – incorporate 
the annual progress update into the 
planning commission annual report. 

Complete – Feb 
2020 

5.2.1 Marketing and 
Promotion – Marketing 
Strategy 

Review the city’s marketing strategy from 
2017 and identify next steps with key 
partners, including a matrix of actions 
and responsible parties. 

September 2020 

6.1 Redevelopment Ready 
Sites 

Identify a third priority site and provide 
the requested information to MEDC to 
complete three site information sheets. 

April 9, 2020 

*RRC is aware that the city is in the process of filling the DDA Director position and that the vacancy may
delay these best practice items for the DDA. RRC will work with the city to identify DDA-specific
timelines once that position.



City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 

Name: 

Department: 

Item: 

Explanation for request: 

Agenda Item: NB - 5__ 

Date: 04/01/20___________

Meeting date requested:



BS&A Software  
14965 Abbey Lane Bath MI 48808  
(855) BSA-SOFT / fax (517) 641-8960 
bsasoftware.com 

 

Proposal for Software and Services, Presented to...  

City of Escanaba, Delta County MI 

February 19, 2020 

Quoted by: Keegan Nixon 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote our software and services. 
 

 At BS&A, we are focused on delivering unparalleled service, solutions, support, and customer satisfaction. You’ll 

see this in our literature, but it’s not just a marketing strategy… it’s a mindset deeply embedded in our DNA. Our 

goal is to provide such remarkable customer service that our customers feel compelled to remark about it. 

 

We are extremely proud of the many long-term customer relationships we have built. Our success is directly 

correlated with putting the customer first and consistently choosing to listen. Delivering unparalleled customer 

service is the foundation of our company. 
 

 

  



 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 2 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Cost Summary  

Applications and Annual Service Fee prices based on an approximate parcel count of 6,372 and population of 13,140. 

Software is licensed for use only by municipality identified on the cover page.  If used for additional entities or agencies, 

please contact BS&A for appropriate pricing. Prices subject to change if the actual count is significantly different than the 

estimated count. 

 

Applications 

 

Community Development   

$8,715 Building Department .NET 

Field Inspection .NET  $3,490 

Total: $12,205 

 

  

Database Setup 

 

  

Database Setup:  

$3,000  Building Department (per database) 

 

No data conversion or database setup to be performed for: 

   Field Inspection 

Project Management and Implementation Planning 

 

Services include: 

 Analyzing customer processes to ensure all critical components are addressed. 

 Creating and managing the project schedule in accordance with the customer's existing processes and needs. 

 Planning and scheduling training around any planned process changes included in the project plan. 

 Modifying the project schedule as needed to accommodate any changes to the scope and requirements of the project that are 

discovered. 

 Providing a central contact between the customer’s project leaders, developers, trainers, IT staff, conversion staff, and other 

resources required throughout the transition period. 

 Installing the software and providing IT consultation for network, server, and workstation configuration and requirements. 

 Reviewing and addressing the specifications for needed customizations to meet customer needs (when applicable). 

 

 $7,250 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 3 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Implementation and Training 

 

 $1,000/day 

 Days quoted are estimates; you are billed for actual days used 

 

Services include: 

 

 Setting up users and user security rights for each application 

 Performing final process and procedure review 

 Configuring custom settings in each application to fit the needs of the customer 

 Setting up application integration and workflow methods 

 Onsite verification of converted data for balancing and auditing purposes 

 Training and Go-Live 

  

Software Setup Days:  1  $1,000 

Community Development Applications  Days:  12  $12,000 

 Total: 13 Subtotal $13,000 

 

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 4 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Cost Totals 
Not including Annual Service Fees 

 

Applications  $12,205 

Database Setup  $3,000 

Project Management and Implementation Planning  $7,250 

Implementation and Training  $13,000 

Total Proposed  $35,455 

Travel Expenses  $6,500 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Payment Schedule 
 

1st Payment:  $10,250 to be invoiced upon execution of this agreement. 

2nd Payment:  $12,205 to be invoiced at start of training. 

3rd Payment: $19,500 to be invoiced upon completion of training. 

  

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 5 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Annual Service Fees  
 

Unlimited support during your first year with the program is included in your purchase price. Thereafter, Service Fees are billed annually. 

After two (2) years, BS&A Software reserves the right to increase the Annual Service Fee by no more than the yearly Consumers Price Index 

for All Urban Consumers U.S. city average (CPI-U). 
 

Community Development    

$1,835   Building Department .NET   

Field Inspection .NET $735 

Total: $2,570 

 

 

 

 

  

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 6 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Additional Information 

 

Program Customization 

BS&A strives to provide a flexible solution that can be tailored to each municipality's needs. However, in some cases, custom work may 

be required. Typical examples include:  

` custom payment import/lock box import 

` custom OCR scan-line 

` custom journal export to an outside accounting system 

` custom reports 

If you require any custom work, please let us know so that we can better understand the scope of your request and include that in a 

separate proposal. 

 

 

 

Additional Training - Building Department Report Designer  

Most of our Building Department customers heavily use our Report Designer, which is included free with the program. Report Designer 

Training is not included in the training quoted on this proposal and is highly recommended. You may attend a class at our office in Bath 

Township, or we can train at your location. Report Designer Training is typically completed in one day. 

Please check the option you are interested in. Report Designer Training will be scheduled after successful implementation and training 

of your Building Department software. 

___ Classroom training, $205/person/day 

___ On-site training (unlimited attendees), $1,000/day, travel not included 

 

  

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 7 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Acceptance 
 

 

Signature constitutes... 

1. An order for products and services as quoted 

Quoted prices do not include Program Customization, training beyond the estimated number of days, or recommended 

Bank Reconciliation Consultation 

2. Agreement with the proposed Annual Service Fees 

3. Acceptance of BS&A's hardware recommendations required to efficiently run the .NET applications 

 

 

 

Signature Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BS&A PLEDGE. We offer a one-year, risk-reversal pledge on our software. If, up to a year after installation, you are not 

happy with our software and service, you can return our software for a full refund. 

 

 

 

Returning Accepted Proposal to BS&A 

Please return the entire proposal, with signature/date (this page) and contact information (next page) filled out, by any of 

these methods:  

 

 

Mail:  BS&A Software 

14965 Abbey Lane 

Bath, MI 48808 

 

Fax:   (517) 641-8960 

 

Email:   knixon@bsasoftware.com 

 

Once your proposal is received, a BS&A representative will contact you to begin the scheduling process.  

 

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


 

 City of Escanaba, Delta County MI | February 19, 2020 
   

  Keegan Nixon, Account Executive | (855) 272-7638 | knixon@bsasoftware.com 

      Page 8 of 8  Prices good for a period of 90 days from date on proposal 

Contact Information 

If any mailing addresses are PO Boxes, please also provide a Street Address for UPS/Overnight mail. 

If additional contacts need to be submitted, please make a copy of this page. 

 

 

 

Key Contact for Implementation and Project Management 

 

 

Name______________________________________________________________________________ Title__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Phone/Fax_________________________________________________________________________ Email_________________________________________________ 

 

 

Mailing Address____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

City, State, Zip______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

IT Contact 

 

 

Name______________________________________________________________________________ Title__________________________________________________ 

 

 

Phone/Fax_________________________________________________________________________ Email_________________________________________________ 

 

 

Mailing Address____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

City, State, Zip______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

mailto:knixon@bsasoftware.com


Agenda Item: NB - 7

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 4/9/20 

Name: Jeff Lampi 

Department: Wastewater 

Item: Bonding Ordinance for WWTP SRF project 

Explanation for request: 

Administration is requesting city council's approval of an Ordinance authorizing the 
issuance of the Wastewater System Revenue Bonds for the WWTP project in an 
amount not to exceed $14,000,000. 

The Ordinance 1226 is attached to this request. You will also find a cover letter from 
Patrick McGow; of Miller Canfield, explaining this action in more detail. 

















































Agenda Item: NB - 8 

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 4/9/20 

Name: Jeff Lampi � /j_/ 
Department: Wastewater 

Item: Request to award Construction Work for WWTP SRF project 

Explanation for request: 
Administration is requesting city council's approval to award the contract to Staab 
Construction Corporation of Marshfield Wi in the amount of $13,352,000. The contract 
award should be made contingent upon receipt of the project financing from the State of 
Michigan under the State Revolving Loan program, successful negotiation of a 
deductive change order #1 with Staab, and sufficient City reserves to fund the shortfall. 













































Agenda Item: NB - 9

City Council Agenda Item Request 

Date: 4/9/20 

Name: Jeff Lampi 

Department: Wastewater 

Item: Construction Contract Resolution for WWTP SRF project 

Explanation for request: 

Administration is requesting city council's approval of the resolution to accept the 
construction contract to be awarded to Staab Construction Corporation of Marshfield WI 

Copy of the Resolution is attached. 




	Agenda Packet
	Signed Agenda
	cm04.02.2020
	cm04.06.2020 budget
	cm04.07.2020 budget
	PH-1
	PH-2
	UB-1
	mxm363@escanaba.org_20200410_120904
	UB-1
	PH-2
	PH-1
	ord 1223 Bay de Noc Apts PILOT




	UB-2
	NB -1 ADD BAY DE NOC MUNICIPAL SERVICES  AGREEMENT 2020-1 Final (1)
	NB-1
	NB-1
	Bay de Noc Apartments
	Sheets
	CSP.2 - ENLARGED CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN




	UB-3
	NB-1
	NB-2_Redacted
	NB-3
	mxm363@escanaba.org_20200313_104058

	NB-4
	NB-7_Redacted
	NB-8_Redacted
	NB-9

	City Council Agenda Item Request - Fillable (1)

	Date: April 8, 2020
	Name: Roxanne Spencer
	Department: Planning & Zoning
	Item: Approval - BS&A Software - Planning & Zoning
	Explanation: Administration is requesting approval to purchase Community Development software from BS&A in the amount of $35,500.  The first payment of $10,250 will be due upon execution of the agreement with the remaining balance due in the next fiscal year.  
	Date Requested: April 16, 2020


